From: _@rebusplanning.co.uk>

Sent: 07 March 2024 18:35
To: I
Subject: RE: 23/01441 Eastling Down Farm, Sandwich Road, Waldershare

Ah —glad to see | am not the only one working late!!
Thanks- always happy to discuss and so look forward to hearing from you!

All the best

Rebus Planning Solutions
NEW OFFICE NUMBER: Tel. 01304 697077
NEW ADDRESS: Rebus Planning Solutions Ltd. Studio 24, Honeywood Parkway, White Cliffs Business Park, Dover CT16 3QX

Rebus Planning Solutions Ltd, Studio 24, Honeywood Parkway, White Cliffs Business Park, Dover, Kent, CT16 3QX
Co. Reg. No. 10406180. Registered in England & Wales at : Office 1 Upstairs, Yew Tree Farm, Stone Street, Stanford, Kent TN25 6DH

From: @DOVER.GOV.UK>
Sent: Thursday, March 7, 2024 6:33 PM

To:_@rebusplanning.co.uk>

Subject: RE: 23/01441 Eastling Down Farm, Sandwich Road, Waldershare

i

| hope you’re well!

This one has been given to me.
I’'ll look through everything on Monday and then come back to you with an expected timescale/ an update if
that’s okay.

I’d be happy to meet with you/ discuss anything on the phone if necessary,

Best wishes

From: @rebusplanning.co.uk>
Sent: Wednesday, March 6, 2024 5:20 PM
To: @DOVER.GOV.UK>

Cc: @DoVER.GoV.UK>; |GGG 2DoVER.Gov.Uk>

Subject: FW: 23/01441 Eastling Down Farm, Sandwich Road, Waldershare

HeIIo-
| hope all is well!?

Would you be in a position to advise us who is dealing with the above-mentioned application please? (there seems
to have been an officer ‘switch’ and we are looking for an update)

Thank you



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

From:
Sent: Wednesday, February 21, 2024 5:32 PM

To: @DOVER.GOV.UK>; ||l @dover.gov.uk
Subject: 23/01441 Eastling Down Farm, Sandwich Road, Waldershare

HeIIo- and-

The website advises that the above-mentioned application has been reallocated to-
If so, or even if not, would it be possible to get an update please?
Hoping that all is well (with you both).

Rebus Planning Solutions
NEW OFFICE NUMBER: Tel. 01304 697077
NEW ADDRESS: Rebus Planning Solutions Ltd. Studio 24, Honeywood Parkway, White Cliffs Business Park, Dover CT16 3QX

This email is sent on behalf of Rebus Planning Solutions Ltd and is strictly confidential and intended solely for the addressee(s). If you are not the intended
recipient of this email you must: (i) not disclose, copy or distribute its contents to any other person nor use its contents in any way or you may be acting
unlawfully; (ii) contact Rebus Planning Solutions Ltd immediately quoting the name of the sender and the addressee then delete it from your system. Rebus
Planning Solutions Ltd has taken reasonable precautions to ensure that no viruses are contained in this email, but does not accept any responsibility once
this email has been transmitted. You should scan attachments (if any) for viruses. Rebus Planning Solutions Ltd is registered in England & Wales, Co.
No0.10406180 at: Office 1 Upstairs, Yew Tree Farm, Stone Street, Stanford, Kent TN25 6DH

This e-mail, including any attachments, is intended for the above addressee(s) only and may contain marked material up to RESTRICTED and should be
handled accordingly.

If you are not the intended recipient (or authorised to receive it on behalf of the addressee), please notify the sender immediately by return e-mail and then
delete the message without copying it or disclosing it to anyone.

Precautions have been taken to ensure that this is a virus-free message but recipients are responsible for carrying out their own checks. This Council
accepts no responsibility for loss or damage to any hardware, software or data resulting from this e-mail.

All GCSx (Government Connects Secure Extranet) traffic may be subject to recording and/or monitoring in accordance with relevant legislation.

Dover District Council is a data controller under GDPR. Our privacy notice at www.dover.gov.uk/privacy explains how we use and share personal information
and protect your privacy and rights.




From: _@rebusplanning.co.uk>

Sent: 26 March 2024 18:18

To: I

Subject: RE: 23/01441 Eastling Down Farm, Sandwich Road, Waldershare
Hello

| hope you are keeping well!

In referring to the above, our clients have been very patient, but | do now need to update them with regard to the
progress of their application.
Are you in a position to update me please?

Thank you, | look forward to hearing from you

Rebus Planning Solutions

Tel. 01304 697077

Rebus Planning Solutions Ltd. Studio 24, Honeywood Parkway, White Cliffs Business Park, Dover CT16 3QX

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
I’ll look through everything on Monday and then come back to you with an expected timescale/ an update if
that’s okay.

I’d be happy to meet with you/ discuss anything on the phone if necessary,

Best wishes

From:_@rebusplanning.co.uk>
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

Hello and
The website advises that the above-mentioned application has been reallocated to-
If so, or even if not, would it be possible to get an update please?

Hoping that all is well (with you both).

Karen

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

Sent: 10 April 2024 18:26

To: I

Subject: FW: 23/01441 Eastling Down Farm, Sandwich Road, Waldershare
Hello

| hope that you had a good holiday!

| do really need an update now please. The application has run over time and without an EoT being agreed.
Could you advise?

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

From: NN

Sent: Tuesday, March 26, 2024 6:18 PM
To: I °0VER. GOV.UK>
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

From: || 0o \VER.GOV.UK>

Sent: Thursday, March 7, 2024 6:33 PM
To:_@rebusplanning.co.uk>

Subject: RE: 23/01441 Eastling Down Farm, Sandwich Road, Waldershare

Hil

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

Cc: chlol¥colAlled @ = = [chleVd:Xcde Al

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

To: GG 200 ViR .cov.uk>; [ @dover.gov.uk

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
No.10406180 at: Office 1 Upstairs, Yew Tree Farm, Stone Street, Stanford, Kent TN25 6DH
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

Sent: 17 April 2024 21:28
To: I
Subject: RE: 23/01441 Eastling Down Farm, Sandwich Road, Waldershare

Thank you again- —your communications (as always) are very much appreciated!
(Hope you had a good dinner!)

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

From: || @ 0o VER.GOV.UK>

Sent: Wednesday, April 17, 2024 9:14 PM
To:_@rebusplanning.co.uk>

Subject: Re: 23/01441 Eastling Down Farm, Sandwich Road, Waldershare

Hi

Sorry we chatted for a while and then | had dinner plans so dashed out, with plans to log on this evening to update
you. Sorry it was later than planned!

That app is great,- did manage to get it working while we were on the call.

- has asked for one more day to check something with another officer, although he said he could definitely see
my perspective and my argument for approval.

- is very thorough, and I’'m learning a lot from him which is great!

I'll make sure to update you tomorrow once- has checked what he needed to, and then give you a firm update
rather than the waffle I've sent so far.

| have a site visit first thing so I’d anticipate an email to you by 2pm at the very latest.
I've already largely written the delegated report in the hope that we can avoid committee.

Best wishes

Sent from Qutlook for iOS

From:_@rebusplanning.co.uk>

Sent: Wednesday, April 17, 2024 7:53:47 PM
To: @DOVER.GOV.UK>
Subject: FW: 23/01441 Eastling Down Farm, Sandwich Road, Waldershare

Hello again-

May | guess that you were not able to catch up with- this afternoon?
| know that he was having problems accessing the new ‘Stagecoach Connect’ app. Hopefully — if this is still the only
sticking point, he has managed to access this (quite excellent, as it turns out) public transportation service?

1




We await your response
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
Sent: Wednesday, April 17, 2024 2:48 PM

To: @DOVER.GOV.UK>

Subject: RE: 23/01441 Eastling Down Farm, Sandwich Road, Waldershare

Hello
It appears to be the nature of planning — 100 mph or crash!

Thank you for the update and the positive news.
Let us hope- is in agreement — and so we wait to hear from you
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
Sent: Wednesday, April 17, 2024 11:04 AM
To:

Down Farm, Sandwich Road, Waldershare

Hi

| hope you're well too,
Things are 100mph here as always, but really enjoying it all.

| am waiting to hear from a Cllr who has asked for this to be heard at committee due to supporting the

scheme.

If they are happy for me to recommend approval under delegated powers that'll speed things up somewhat

rather than waiting for committee.

This is a finely balanced case, but | believe | have made a robust case for approval.

I'm having a final discussion with ] today. to ensure that i've not missed anything, which | will feedback to

you immediately after.

Subject to the Cllr being happy with a delegated decision, | will also then be able to provide an updated time

frame for issuing the decision.

| will email again this afternoon after my discussion with [



best wishes

From: @rebusplanning.co.uk>
Sent: 26 March 2024 18:17

To: I ©00VER. GOV.Uk>

Subject: RE: 23/01441 Eastling Down Farm, Sandwich Road, Waldershare

Hello |

| hope you are keeping well!

In referring to the above, our clients have been very patient, but | do now need to update them with
regard to the progress of their application.

Are you in a position to update me please?

Thankyou, | look forward to hearing from you

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

From: I 0O\ =5 GOV.UK>

Sent: Thursday, March 7, 2024 6:33 PM

To: I <0 usplanning.co.uk>

Subject: RE: 23/01441 Eastling Down Farm, Sandwich Road, Waldershare

Hil



| hope you’re well!

This one has been given to me.

I’ll look through everything on Monday and then come back to you with an expected timescale/ an
update if that’s okay.

I’d be happy to meet with you/ discuss anything on the phone if necessary,

Best wishes

From: | G <busplanning.co.uk>

Sent: Wednesday, March 6, 2024 5:20 PM

To: @DOVER.GOV.UK>
Cc: @DoVER.coV.Uk>; | GG 200 VER.GOV. UK>

Subject: FW: 23/01441 Eastling Down Farm, Sandwich Road, Waldershare

Hello ||}

| hope allis well!?

Would you be in a position to advise us who is dealing with the above-mentioned application please?
(there seems to have been an officer ‘switch’ and we are looking for an update)

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

To: [ <00 VER. cov. UK>; Il @cover.sov.uk
Subject: 23/01441 Eastling Down Farm, Sandwich Road, Waldershare

Hello il <l

The website advises that the above-mentioned application has been reallocated to Amber.
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

Sent: 17 April 2024 14:48

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

To: @rebusplanning.co.uk>

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

| will email again this afternoon after my discussion with i

best wishes

From:_@rebusplanning.co.uk>

Sent: 26 March 2024 18:17

To: |GGG DO VER.GOV. UK>

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

From: [ = 0OVER. GOV.UK>
Sent: Thursday, March 7, 2024 6:33 PM

To: [ ©r<0ousplanning.co.uk>

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

Cc: @DOVER.GOV.UK>;

Subject: FW: 23/01441 Eastling Down Farm, Sandwich Road, Waldershare

Hello ||}

| hope allis well!?

@DOVER.GOV.UK>

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

To: I >0 7. 0. U I ©over.gov.uk

Subject: 23/01441 Eastling Down Farm, Sandwich Road, Waldershare

Hello il an< N

The website advises that the above-mentioned application has been reallocated to ||}
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

Sent: 17 April 2024 19:54
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

¢rom: I @ 0O\ £R. GOV.UK>

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



From: ||} 20O VER.GOV.UK>

Sent: Thursday, March 7, 2024 6:33 PM

To: | <0 usplanning.co.uk>

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

From: || G <busplanning.co.uk>

Sent: Wednesday, March 6, 2024 5:20 PM

To: @DOVER.GOV.UK>

Cc: @DoVER.coVv.Uk>; | GG 20O VER.GOV. UK>
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

To: I >0 7. 0. UK I ©over.gov.uk

Subject: 23/01441 Eastling Down Farm, Sandwich Road, Waldershare

Hello il an<

The website advises that the above-mentioned application has been reallocated to |||}
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




From: I

Sent: 17 April 2024 21:14
To:
Subject: Re: 23/01441 Eastling Down Farm, Sandwich Road, Waldershare

Hi
Sorry we chatted for a while and then | had dinner plans so dashed out, with plans to log on this
evening to update you. Sorry it was later than planned!

That app is great, ] did manage to get it working while we were on the call.

I has asked for one more day to check something with another officer, although he said he could
definitely see my perspective and my argument for approval.
I is very thorough, and I’m learning a lot from him which is great!

I'll make sure to update you tomorrow once | has checked what he needed to, and then give you
a firm update rather than the waffle I’'ve sent so far.

| have a site visit first thing so I’d anticipate an email to you by 2pm at the very latest.
I’ve already largely written the delegated report in the hope that we can avoid committee.

Best wishes

Sent from Outlook foriOS

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



rrom: I

Sent: Wednesday, April 17, 2024 2:48 PM
To: (S @ 0OV EF GOV. UK
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

I am waiting to hear from a Cllr who has asked for this to be heard at committee due to supporting the
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

| will email again this afternoon after my discussion with [}

best wishes

From: @rebusplanning.co.uk>

Sent: 26 March 2024 18:17

To: @DOVER.GOV.UK>

Subject: RE: 23/01441 Eastling Down Farm, Sandwich Road, Waldershare

Hello ||



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

From: [N 0 OVER. GOV.UK>
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

Hello |}

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

To: I >0 7. OV, UK I ©over.gov.uk

Subject: 23/01441 Eastling Down Farm, Sandwich Road, Waldershare

Hello il <N

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

Sent: 19 April 2024 09:55
To: I
Subject: RE: 23/01441 Eastling Down Farm, Sandwich Road, Waldershare

HeIIo-
Sorry to press but our clients were hoping for an update to go into the weekend with.
Is there any advice you can give?

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

g
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

I’ll make sure to update you tomorrow once- has checked what he needed to, and then give you a firm update
rather than the waffle I've sent so far.

| have a site visit first thing so I'd anticipate an email to you by 2pm at the very latest.
I’'ve already largely written the delegated report in the hope that we can avoid committee.

Best wishes

Sent from Outlook for iOS

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

To: GGG 200 VER.GOV.UK>

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
I'm having a final discussion with ] today. to ensure that i've not missed anything, which I will feedback to
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

To: | < <ousplanning.co.uk>

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

From: | G cbusplanning.co.uk>

Sent: Wednesday, March 6, 2024 5:20 PM

To: @DOVER.GOV.UK>

Cc: @DoVER.coV.Uk>; | G 200 VER.GOV. UK>
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

Sent: 19 April 2024 10:14

To:

Cc:

Subject: 23/01441 Eastling Down Farm, Sandwich Road, Waldershare

HeIIo-

| hope you are keeping well!

With reference to the above, we have enjoyed recent communications With- who has advised that she was in
discussion with you about our clients’ submission and the planning merits of the scheme.

Our clients were hoping to hear something by the weekend following your discussions this week, but | have just
received an ‘out of office’ response from her.

Could I ask for an update please?
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



From: E—

Sent: 19 April 2024 17:25

To:

Subject: RE: 23/01441 - Whitfield 4 dwelling site
Thanks for the heads up-

Kind regards,

Planning & Development Manager

Dover District Council
Council Offices, White Cliffs Business Park, Whitfield, Dover CT16 3PJ
Email:*@dovengov‘uk

DOV Web: http://dover.gov.uk

DISTRI

s My working days are Tuesday to Friday

From: @DOVER.GOV.UK>
Sent: Friday, April 19, 2024 3:04 PM

To: @DOVER.GOV.UK>

Cc: @dover.gov.uk>

Subject: 23/01441 - Whitfield 4 dwelling site

Hil

Just so you are aware, as | think the agent (il is attending on Tuesday, so just in case it gets
mentioned to you. called me today for an update as- is on leave, and she wanted to know if |
agree with opinion of the proposal. | outlined that | am more negative of the proposal, is tilted
balance, but lack of services to walk to despite the bus service and not supported by the draft Local Plan at
this time without the Whitfield masterplan and doesn’t meet SP4. | said because of these competing
arguments, we will be reviewing Tuesday at a project meeting with you,- etc. and- will update her
Tuesday PM or Wednesday.

Hopefully you are not ambushed with it Tuesday, but justin case.

Thanks,



I
n Principal Planning Officer (Strategic Sites and Place)

Dover District Council

BQEI%E Council Offices, White Cliffs Business Park, Whitfield, Dover CT16 3PJ

COUNCIL Tel:
_ Email: @dover.gov.uk

B% Please consider the Environment before printing this email

Dover District Council is a data controller under GDPR, your attention is drawn to our Corporate
Privacy Notice at https://www.dover.gov.uk/privacy. This explains how we will use and share your
personal information and protect your privacy and rights.

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

Sent: 22 April 2024 11:22

To: I

Subject: FW: 23/01441 Eastling Down Farm, Sandwich Road, Waldershare
Hi

In your absence at the end of last week, | spoken with-
| understand that you are to have a meeting to discuss the application tomorrow — may | ask what time?
| have some further information that | would like to ‘pitch’ but wish to get it to you in good time

Thanks

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
Sent: Wednesday, April 17, 2024 7:54 PM

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

To: (S @ 0O\ £R. GOV.UK>

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



Thankyou, I look forward to hearing from you

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

To: | & <0 usplanning.co.uk>

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

Cc: @DOVER.GOV.UK>;_@DOVER.GOV.UK>
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

To: GGG 200 VER.GOV. UK>; [l @dover.gov.uk
Subject: 23/01441 Eastling Down Farm, Sandwich Road, Waldershare



Hello il an<

The website advises that the above-mentioned application has been reallocated to [}
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

Sent: 23 April 2024 11:05

To: o

Subject: DOV/23/01441 - land at Eastling Down Farm, Sandwich Road, Waldershare
Attachments: Extract - National Bus Strategy - Kent.pdf; 21_00731-

OFFICER_REPORT-2352671.docx

Dear- and-

| refer to the above and my telephone conversation with- of last Friday. - advised that you are due to
discuss our application with senior officers given that it is a finely balanced case. | understand that you are minded
to recommend approval albeit that other officers are minded to recommend refusal and given this, please accept
this further information as forming part of our formal submission.

Access

| understand that, at least, one officer is of the view that although our site is served by a new ‘Stagecoach Connect’
bus service that this is insufficient, in itself, to render the site as sustainable in transportation terms. | was advised
that the LPA has successfully defended one or two recent appeals for housing proposals on rural bus routes with an
Inspector/Inspectors opining that an irregular bus service is not sustainable. Notwithstanding the fact that national
planning policy promotes rural housing so that services and facilities can be better supported in order sustain them,
| cannot agree that a ‘demand response’ form of transportation is not sustainable. In this regard, | draw your
attention to paragraph 3.241 of the emerging Local Plan. With the Plan promoting the demand-responsive
transport bus service, and advising that it will be extended to rural areas beyond Aylesham if successful, then surely
with the District’s own Development Plan promoting such a service, this must considered as a sustainable form of
transportation!?

| would also like to draw your attention to the attachment to this email. This document is an extract from The
National Bus Strategy — Kent Bus Service Improvement Plan prepared by Kent County Council wherein initiative:
ADMI 5 advises that “KCC and Kent’s bus operators will consider the role that DRT, feed services and other
alternative modes can play in solving rural connectivity issues”.

The initiative stems from experience already gained in Kent from the launch of the ‘Go 2’ DRT scheme in Sevenoaks
and the actual replacement of some end-to-end bus services with feeder services which, KCC advise, supports their
view that in some cases these alternatives provide better solutions than conventional bus services “particularly in
rural areas”.

| do encourage officers to consider the attached and the fact that Kent’s own highway authority should be
promoting ‘Stagecoach Connect’ as meeting the aims and aspirations of the County transportation programme.

Consistent Decision Making

It is, of course, recognised that each case must be considered on its own merits. We again make reference to the
gypsy/traveller site on land north of Eastling Down Farm Cottages, east of Sandwich Road Waldershare
(DOV/21/00731) wherein it was determined that the site was sustainable because “the 88A Stagecoach bus passes
the site between Dover and Sandwich and is understood to be a weekday, peak hour bus service”.

At paragraph 2.8 of the Officer’s Report (attached) it is stated that “Given the distance to the nearest settlement and
proximity to local services and facilities, and the limited bus service the site, there is no genuine, alternative choice as
a means of transport (other than by private car) and the proposal is considered to be in conflict with ... Policy DM

7”. However, later in the report (paragraph 2.43) the Officer states “This conflict with the Development Plan is

g

tempered by a number of factors. The site is on a bus route, and it is not in a ‘remote location’.

We would add that Stagecoach’s ‘conditions of carriage’ advises that “In certain areas there are no designated bus
stops and, in those areas, buses will stop on request where it is safe to do so”. Whilst there may be no permanent

1



bus stop at Eastling Down Farm, we can advise that for many years visitors to Eastling Down Farm (the campsite)
have stopped on request at the entrance of Eastling Down Farm and when we consider both the DRT now in
operation and the fact that Eastling Down Farm is on the same bus route as the gypsy/traveller site considered
under DOV/21/00731, a refusal of this application and the grounds that it is located in a unsustainable location will
appear as a striking inconsistency in the LPA’s decision making process.

Allocation -v- Confines

Bearing in mind that the site lies within the defined urban confines in the adopted Plan, and within an allocation that
will, subject to Main Modifications, be found sound in the emerging Plan, we continue to assert that the site lies
within a sustainable location given the above.

We look forward to hearing from you once you and your colleagues have discussed our application.
Kind regards

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
No0.10406180 at: : Office 1 Upstairs, Yew Tree Farm, Stone Street, Stanford, Kent TN25 6DH



National Bus Strategy

Kent Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP)
Version 1. Pre-Funding Settlement

HENENEN
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— Kent County Council &
Kent local bus operators

Let’s talk
=» kent.gov.uk/busfuture




National Bus Strategy

4. Delivery
Kent has previously explored the potential to by the BSIP and EP Governance structure, KCC
adopt the Superbus approach, and identified will identify areas of the network suitable for
a possible scheme for submission for the ‘Superbussing’.

Government Superbus Fund at the start of 2020.
In line with DfT’s Superbus definition, our scheme
sought to work closely with the operator and

local district council to deliver improvements

at congestion pinch points on the already well
performing LOOP service. In return for the priority
measures, Stagecoach would have delivered

further improvements to the local bus network Kent can already point to the use of alternative

in terms of frequency improvements and fares transport types to service rural areas. Experience
initiatives. All parties would also work towards gained from the launch of the ‘Go2’ DRT scheme
improved marketing in the area. Ultimately, this in Sevenoaks, and the replacement of some end-
was not submitted but it enabled the council to-end bus services with feeder services, supports
to form a view that parts of our network have our view that in some cases these alternatives

the potential to support such a scheme. Using provide better solutions than conventional bus

NBS funding we are seeking to reinvigorate this services, particularly in rural areas.
Thanet Scheme.

KCC views the Superbus ethos as supporting
multiple BSIP initiatives: underpinning parts

of the network that already have a strong
commercial service, supporting a number of areas
to stimulate further bus use, and adding service
enhancements to create a ‘premium’ standard.

With our existing knowledge of the network
and through operator engagement supported
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4. Delivery

(continued)

By its nature DRT only operates when there is

a need, so if designed and focussed well it can
represent a far more efficient means of providing
transport for areas with less significant or
consistent demand. In turn, this can mean larger
areas can be serviced with more limited resource.

In addition to efficiency considerations, DRT can
also offer a different type of service. Different
destinations and journeys that operate longer
hours and on additional days of the week could
attract new and even non-bus users to use public
transport. Commuters are a good example of
such a group, where DRT can offer journeys and
rail connections that would not be considered
sustainable on a conventional bus service.

As Kent expands the number and coverage of
DRT schemes, KCC intends to provide a common
platform for service management and passenger
information and booking. It is hoped this could
remove some of the financial barriers that
currently exist, and the platform could be opened
up to new schemes and operators. KCC will also
give consideration to putting all DRT schemes
under one common brand.

Similarly, whilst not such a radical departure
from end-to-end bus services, areas not directly

National Bus Strategy

served by but in in close proximity to higher
frequency bus corridors are ideal for feeder
services. In 2019, the council launched a series of
new rural transport schemes that included three
feeder services that continue to operate today. In
each instance, we identified and built enhanced
interchange points with suitable infrastructure
and an area to turn vehicles. Supported by
through-ticketing agreements between
operators where needed, instead of running the
rural service all the way to the local town centre,
passengers are dropped at the interchange
location where they can access high frequency
connections to the town centre.

The time saved is then repurposed into a higher
level of frequency for the villages served. In
addition to increasing frequency, organising
services in this way also has the potential to open
up a different choice of destinations through
connecting services. KCC believes that there are
other parts of the county with similar conditions
and opportunities that should be explored.

In respect of all alternative rural transport
solutions, a considered approach is needed.
Suitable areas with both need and potential
must be identified, and the design of the service
must ensure that scale and resource are set at

appropriate and sustainable levels, whilst still
achieving a step change in provision. This more
intelligent approach can be used to identify
existing layers of transport and funding streams
that can be incorporated to ensure sustainability.

The Council is therefore proposing that these
alternative solutions form part of the delivery of
Year 2 and 3 schemes. These will be focused on
areas identified through countywide network
analysis (explained in Section 4.3) as having
poorer levels of current accessibility. Network
redesign will stem from in-depth, data-led
reviews of current provision on localised areas
(as per the study included as Appendix D).
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b)

DOV/21/00731 — Change of use to Gypsy/Traveller Site for 8no. pitches with 1no.
static caravan, 1no. touring caravan, 2no. parking spaces and dayroom per pitch
(part retrospective)

Land North Of Eastling Down Farm Cottages And East Of Sandwich Road
Waldershare CT15 5AS

Reason for report: Number of contrary views (38)

Summary of Recommendation

Planning permission be granted.

Planning Policies and Guidance

Dover District Core Strategy (CS) Policies: DM1, DM11, DM15, DM16, DM17, DM19

DM7 — States that the Council will allocate sites to meet the needs of gypsies, travellers and
travelling showpeople using assessment criteria, and will use criteria in this policy to
determine planning applications

Land Allocations Local Plan (LALP)
LA1 — commits to providing a Gypsies, Travellers and Showpeople Land Allocations Local
Plan - but this has been superseded by the emergence of the Draft Local Plan.

Regulation 19 Submission draft Dover District Local Plan

The Regulation 19 draft Dover District Local Plan is a material planning consideration in
the determination of this planning application, although at this stage it contains limited
weight. Policies SP2 and SP3 are relevant and, in particular, Policies H3 and H4 relate to
new gypsy provision. The wording of the Policies does not preclude such provision within
the countryside, but there are criteria that need to be met.

Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment (GTAA) 2018 (updated 2020)

The latest evidence of the LPA as set out in the GTAA and Regulation 19 Submission Plan
is that for the plan period 2020 to 2040 there is a cultural need for 26 pitches and a PPTS
need for 16 pitches.

5 Year Supply of Gypsy/Traveller Sites

The LPA can currently demonstrate that it has a 5 year supply of deliverable
gypsy/traveller sites. The position as set out in the Regulation 19 draft Plan is that the
Council can currently meet its supply needs to 2033 and has an 8.1 years’ supply.

National Planning Policy Framework 2021 (NPPF)

Section 5 — seeks to deliver a sufficient supply of homes. Paragraph 62 states that the
size, type and tenure of housing needed for different groups in the community should be
assessed and reflected in planning policies (including for travellers). Footnote 27 refers to
Planning Policy for Traveller Sites, which sets out how travellers’ housing needs should be
assessed.

Section 9 promotes sustainable transport. Paragraph 108 requires appropriate
opportunities to promote sustainable transport modes to be taken up; safe and suitable
access to the site to be achieved for all users; and any significant impacts from the
development ...on highway safety, can be cost effectively mitigated to an acceptable
degree.



Section 12 is relevant as the proposal should seek to achieve well-designed places
ensuring that development will function well and add to the overall quality of an area, be
sympathetic to local character and history and create places that are safe, inclusive and
accessible and which promote health and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for
existing and future users; and where crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not
undermine the quality of life or community cohesion and resilience.

Section 15 is relevant as it seeks to conserve and enhance the natural environment.

Paragraph 8 of the NPPF is relevant in determining whether the proposed development
comprises sustainable development.

Paragraph 11 of the NPPF requires decision makers to apply a presumption in favour of
sustainable development. Where the policies which are most important for determining the
application are out of date, permission should be granted unless the application of policies
in the NPPF that protect areas or assets of particular importance provides a clear reason
for refusing the development; or any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and
demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the NPPF
taken as a whole.

The application site is close to a designated Ancient Woodland. Paragraph 180 of the
NPPF seeks to apply the principle that a development resulting in the loss or deterioration
of irreplaceable habitats (such as an ancient woodland) should be refused.

The application site is close to an Historic Park and Garden. Paragraph 199 of the NPPF
seeks to give great weight to the conservation of a designated heritage asset, and
Paragraph 202 advises that where a development proposal will lead to less than
substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be
weighed against the public benefits of the proposal including, where appropriate, securing
its optimum viable use.

Planning Policy for Traveller Sites (2015) (PPTS):

The PPTS is a material consideration. It seeks to ensure that the needs of travellers
(including gypsies) are identified and assessed to gather robust evidence to plan positively
and manage development. Policy B states that LPAs should identify and update annually,
a supply of specific deliverable sites sufficient to provide 5 years’ worth of sites against
their locally set targets. Policy H provides guidance on determining planning applications
for traveller sites and considers the following issues to be assessed amongst other
relevant matters when considering planning applications for traveller sites:

e The existing level of local provision and need for sites.

o The availability (or lack) of alternate accommodation for the applicants.

e Other personal circumstances of the applicant

e That the locally specific criteria used to guide the allocations of sites in plans, or which
form the policy where there is no identified need for pitches/plots should be used to

assess applications that may come forward on unallocated sites.

e The decision-maker (sic) should determine applications for sites from any travellers
and not just those with local connections.

The Kent Design Guide (2005)




d)

National Design Guide & Code (2021)

Relevant Planning History

20/00498 — Granted, for change of use of land and the erection of a stable block (to
accommodate 3 horses — privately stabled).

The stable building was proposed in the northern part of the site; the approved location of
the access is the same location in the current application, under determination.

Consultee and Third Party Responses

Sutton by Dover Parish Council: Objects.

Tilmanstone Parish Council: Objects on the impact upon the Grade Il Historic Park and
Garden (Waldershare), the Ancient Woodland and archaeology.

Kent PROW Service: “The site is not likely to have significant impact on the adjacent public
right of way therefore | have no comments to make”.

Kent Archaeology: “The site lies very close to the finding of the White Caps Barrow a
prehistoric funerary monument that was excavated during the construction of the main dual
carriageway to the east. Conditions are suggested.

Kent County Council: “The County Council has assessed the implications of this proposal
in terms of the delivery of its community services and is of the opinion that it will have an
additional impact on the delivery of its services, which will require mitigation either through
the direct provision of infrastructure or the payment of an appropriate financial
contribution.”

Southern Water: Advises that the Environment Agency be consulted in view of the private
wastewater treatment works proposed, and the protected groundwater protection zone.

Environment Agency: No objections are made subject to the imposition of a planning
condition to approve a foul water drainage scheme. A permit may be required for certain
drainage schemes. With regard to surface water drainage, advice is provided.

Officer Comment: The advice provided could be achieved through the imposition of a
suitably worded planning condition(s).

KCC Highways: Initially asked for a holding objection to be placed on file so that a plan
showing appropriate visibility splays and a swept path for towing vehicles could be
submitted.

Upon receipt of further information, the entrance gate is required to be set back at least 5m
from the edge of the highway. Amended plans show the set back and this can be secured
through a planning condition.

Woodland Trust: “The Woodland Trust lodges a holding objection to this application unless
the applicant can provide the adjacent ancient woodland with a suitable buffer zone in line
with Natural England’s Standing Advice.”

Officer Comment: The required Buffer Zone is stated as being at least 15 metres.
Amended plans show a 15m buffer. This can be secured through a planning condition.



Gardens Trust: Initially objected on the grounds that “the site lies directly opposite a former
drive to Waldershare Park, a Grade Il Registered Park and Garden. The considerable
changes which these proposals would bring about, adversely affects the setting of this
former park entrance.”

Officer Comment: Clarification was sought from the Gardens Trust as to the detail of their
objections. In particular, as the former entrance to the park is now not distinguishable and
has tree and shrubbery cover, forming part of a small wood, and the entrance is not
opposite the application site.

In a further response, the Gardens Trust admit that the former drive is substantially
overgrown (although this is a feature that could be restored) and the 1.8m high boundary
fence on the site detracts from the setting of the historic park and garden. In conclusion,
the Gardens Trust seek a planning condition to remove the boundary fence within 10 years
to be replaced with a mixed native hedge. Their final response is to seek all new tree
planting, native hedge screening and the 15m wide fenced buffer zone in advance of the
occupation of the site which would overcome their objection.

Officer Comment: The requirements of the Garden Trust can be secured through a
planning condition, although as the site is currently occupied the wording of the conditions
will need to reflect the current position on site.

Kent Ecological Advice Service: Sought further information with regard to the potential
ecological impacts. Further information has been submitted, but the advice is now being
provided by the Council’s in-house officer, as follows.

Senior Natural Environment Officer: “The main body of the proposed development site is of
low ecological value, with limited potential for protected species to be present and affected
by the proposals. No specific species surveys are therefore necessary at this time, but the
implementation of precautionary measures, as recommended in section 5.2 of the Draft
Scoping Ecology Assessment, must be secured by condition, if planning permission is
granted.”

In addition, and with regard to the proposed buffer zone: “...the fence is fine but the buffer
zone needs to be planted with native tree species and any grass subject to minimal
management but ideally allowed to scrub over / naturalise, it will not be acceptable for it to
be maintained as short grass. A regularly cut path through the vegetation can be
maintained for access to the borehole, though this should not encourage additional access
to the buffer zone. The details can be secured by condition or provided up front, but either
way there needs to be a plan of the buffer zone, planting specifications and details of the
approach to management...”

Heritage Officer: The Heritage Team does not need to be consulted, but Historic England
should be.

Private Sector Housing: A Licence will be required under The Caravan Sites and Control of
Development Act 1960.

Historic England: Does not wish to offer any comments.

Third Party Representations: At the time of writing, there have been 53 responses to the
application. The proposal has been amended and so some responses might not be as
relevant. However, all the responses are summarised below for completeness. There are
38 responses objecting, 14 supporting and one providing a neutral response to the
application.
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The objections are summarised as follows:

Unsuitable and unsustainable location, creation of an isolated community

Loss of a greenfield site, harm to countryside, the fence causes harm

Poor layout, poorly planned scheme, overdevelopment, poor living environment
The proposal lacks sufficient amenity space, landscaping, privacy for the occupiers and
affordable housing

There would be fire safety hazards, water pollution, lack of sewage capacity, light
pollution

The proposal harms highway safety, the setting of the Historic Park, trees and the
Ancient Woodland, habitats, nature conservation and would adversely affect
archaeology

There is no need for the gypsy site

The proposal is contrary to planning policy and guidance

Precedent

A letter of objection has also been received from Councillor Manion on behalf of local
residents, which raises some of the issues summarised above.

The supporting comments are summarised as follows:

1.1

1.2

1.3

Good road access

Not on a flood plain

Good use of land

The site has its own services

The proposal helps remove illegal stopping

The Site and the Proposal

Prior to the submission of the application and the carrying out of the works on, and
occupation of the site, the application site was undeveloped, greenfield land, with an
access from Sandwich Road. The site has vegetation along its eastern boundary
(with the Sandwich By-Pass), Eastling Wood to the south (which is an Ancient
Woodland) and open fields opposite on the western side of Sandwich Road. Almost
opposite the southern tip of the site is a former access to Waldershare Park.
Waldershare Park is a Grade |l Listed Park and Garden. This former access is not in
current use and has become overgrown and occupied by trees and vegetation. The
access is not distinguishable or readily identifiable from Sandwich Road.

The application site comprises a triangular parcel of land located in the open
countryside between the (old) Sandwich Road and the Sandwich bypass. The
topography of Sandwich Road falls as it passes the site. The closest residential
properties are to the south of the site (Eastling Down Cottages) which are
approximately 150m from the edge of the application site.

The site is approximately 0.8 miles from Whitfield, some 1.2 miles to the nearest
surgery, there are 10 primary schools within 2.9 miles of the site. The nearest is
some 1.2 miles (Whitfield Aspen). There are 10 secondary schools within 7 miles of
the site. The nearest is 1.9 miles (Dover Christ Church Academy). There are no
footways along this stretch of the Road. The 88A Stagecoach bus passes the site
between Dover and Sandwich and is understood to be a week day, peak hour bus
service.
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The site is accessed via Sandwich Road where there is an existing gated field
access of approximately 15m in width at the mouth, narrowing to approximately 8m
further into the site. This access is concreted.

The site is currently occupied by 2 static caravans situated on hardcore material.
There is a borehole providing water to the site, cess pit and electricity hook ups.

The access, parking area and gate are in situ along with 1.8m high close boarded
fencing which has been erected behind the line of the front boundary of the site,
adjacent to the highway. Some native species of planting has been provided in front
of this fencing.

The proposal is to accommodate 8 gypsy/traveller pitches on site; each with a static
caravan, tourer and dayroom. The existing access will serve the site and its parking
area. The pitches are proposed to be located along the eastern boundary of the
site, with the exception of two which will be located inwards, towards the centre of
the site on the other side of a driveway. The driveway will have a turning head. The
‘hardsurfacing’ material will use ‘grass’ pavers (similar to grasscrete). An area in the
centre of the site will function as a grassed amenity area and children’s play area.
Some further tree planting and screening is proposed along the front of the site,
adjacent to the road. The dayrooms would have a square form with a low pitched
roof. They would be timber clad. To the south of the site a 15 metre wide buffer
zone is proposed, with fencing — to provide an unused area to safeguard the
‘setting’ of the ancient woodland.

The applicant has submitted additional information with regard to the site
circumstances and ‘best interests of the child’. In summary, these provide
confirmation and some history to the applicant’s gypsy and travelling background,
they confirm the applicant’s local connection to Dover and provide details with
regard to the children. The information and these details are available to the
Planning Committee to consider as confidential matters, as they contain personal
and sensitive data.

The application site is not within an area at risk from flooding.

Main Issues

The main issues are:

Whether the proposal is acceptable in principle

Whether the proposal would conserve or enhance the countryside
Impact upon the Historic Park & Garden

Other material considerations

Principle of Development

This main issue is concerned with whether the proposal would be in a suitable
location, with reference to the Development Plan’s spatial strategy and the
accessibility of services and facilities.

It is accepted that the current Development Plan policies DM1 and DM11 are not up
to date with the NPPF — although the need to achieve sustainable development is a
shared objective between policy and the NPPF. When policies that are most
important for determining the application are out of date with the NPPF planning
permission for sustainable development should be granted unless the application of
policies in the NPPF that protect areas or assets of particular importance provides a



24

25

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

210

2.1

clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or, any adverse impact of
doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when
assessed against the policies in the NPPF taken as a whole. This is known as the
‘tilted’ balance’. However, if it is considered that the proposed development harms a
protected area or asset and provides a clear reason for refusing the application,
then this would mean that the ‘tilted balance’ is dis-engaged.

The site is situated outside of the urban confines of Dover and not adjacent to a
rural settlement. It is within the open countryside. The proposal is therefore in
conflict with Policy DM1.

Policy DM11 of the Core Strategy indicates, amongst other things, that development
that would generate travel will not be permitted outside the urban boundaries and
rural settlement confines unless justified by development plan policies. This policy
does not set a threshold level of travel beyond which the policy is triggered: the
supporting text to this policy indicates how this issue should be addressed according
to the travel demand generated by development proposals. In this case, there is no
dispute that the increase in use of the site would generate travel, both in terms of
travelling for work, school and for day-to-day living. On a straightforward reading of
Policy DM11, the use of the site as a caravan site for permanent residential
occupation is in conflict with Policy DM11.

Paragraph 105 of the NPPF identifies that different conditions can apply between
rural and urban locations in how ‘genuine choice’ for travel should be measured.
The proposed scheme represents a scale of development which is considered to be
counter to Policy DM11 and Paragraph 105 of the Framework which requires the
active management of patterns of growth to ensure that new development (in this
case housing) is well located to allow a genuine choice.

Policy DM7 does not specifically preclude development in the countryside and
outside of settlement boundaries, but neither does it explicitly justify a departure
from the approach adopted in Policy DM1. However, if the proposal satisfies the
criteria for assessment under Policy DM7, then on the basis that the proposal “is
specifically justified by other development plan policies” this would meet the
requirements of, and override the conflict with, Policy DM1.

One of the criterion to assess the proposal against in Policy DM7 (criteria i) is
whether the application site is accessible to local services and facilities and by
public transport. Given the distance to the nearest settlement and proximity to local
services and facilities, and the limited bus service serving the site, there is no
genuine, alternative choice as a means of transport (other than by private car), and
the proposal is considered to be in conflict with criterion (i) of Policy DM7. For
reasons set out further in this report, the remaining criteria (ii-iv) in this Policy is
considered to be met or can be met.

Policy H (paragraphs 14 and 25) of the PPTS indicates that new traveller site
development in open countryside, away from existing settlements or outside areas
allocated in the development plan, should be very strictly limited. Furthermore, sites
in rural areas should respect the scale of, and do not dominate, the nearest settled
community, and should avoid placing undue pressure on the local infrastructure.

There are aspects of Policy DM7 that are out of kilter with the PPTS and the NPPF.
As such, it should be given less weight in the determination of the application.

With reference to the draft Policy H4 of the Regulation 19 Submission, a location for
new gypsy provision is not precluded from the countryside. The policy enables the
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Council to determine planning applications for Gypsy and Traveller windfall sites on
a site-by-site basis, subject to individual circumstances and need.

In conclusion, it is considered that the application proposal is contrary to the spatial
strategy in the development plan and in part in conflict with Policy DM7 and Policy H
of the PPTS, as far as it relates to the location of the site.

The degree to which there is conflict with Policies DM1, DM7, DM11 and Policy H of
the PPTS needs to be assessed and weighed in the balance with the benefits of the
proposal and other relevant material considerations

Would the proposal conserve or enhance the countryside?

The application site is an open parcel of land that is bound on three sides by
vegetation and by a road on its western boundary. Although open, it is physically
and visually contained, and is not considered to form a contiguous swathe of open
land with the fields on the other side of the road. The visual containment of the site
is also due to the change in topography of the road which in turn limits views over
the erected fence and landscaping planted along the front boundary. The fence has
been erected set back from the highway and appears to have been erected under
permitted development rights, as there is separation between it and the highway.
Viewed from the Sandwich Road (A256) there are glimpses of the site through and
between vegetation, in particular during the winter.

The site is visible across the point of access and the caravans and associated
paraphernalia are more clearly seen through this gap between fencing.

Whilst the loss of the countryside and impact upon character and appearance would
be in conflict with Policy DM15, the extent of this conflict is limited due to the limited
visual impact of the scheme when seen from public vantage points.

Other considerations relevant to this issue include the planning permission for the
development of stables on the land, fencing, access and the use of the land — this
approval in effect removes the former agricultural use of the land and would have
resulted in some form of visual impact upon the character and appearance of the
countryside. This approval and potential fall back position carries weight and
should be taken into account.

Another consideration, which the PPTS attaches weigh to, is whether the site can
be well planned or soft landscaped in such a way as to positively enhance the
environment and increase its openness. The originally submitted plans have been
amended so that the pitches and development are located mostly along the eastern
boundary of the site and a grassed open area is proposed between these
caravans/pitches and the front boundary - to keep this part of the site open and also
to provide an amenity area for children. Furthermore, the southern section of the
site has an open, buffer zone that will not be used or developed. In addition, the
applicant has agreed, if permission is granted, to increase the landscaping/planting
along the front and rear boundaries of the site (those boundaries that face the old
Sandwich Road and the A256). The landscaping provision would be a ‘thickening
up’ along the eastern boundary to fill in gaps. The planting along the front boundary
facing Sandwich Road has not matured effectively yet, but additional planting under
a landscaped scheme could provide an effective screen and setting for the
development.
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Once mature and providing an effective landscaped screen the erected fence could
be replaced with a more suitable type of fencing (this can be secured through a
condition). This approach would also meet the requirements of the Garden Trust.

Whilst there is conflict with Policy DM15 and paragraph 170 of the NPPF, it is
considered that the visual impact of the development on the countryside is limited
and can be improved through landscaping and planning conditions.

Impact upon the Historic Park and Garden

The application site is considered to be suitably separate from the historic park and
garden to avoid causing harm to the Park. It is close to a former access to the Park
but the proposed development is and will be some distance from this access. The
access is not distinguishable and its former alignment is covered with trees and
other vegetation. The Garden Trust considers that the proximity of the site to a
former access affects the Park’s setting. The Trust requires conditions to be
imposed should the proposal be considered acceptable in other respects. By
reason of the height of the trees and the established vegetation, it is assumed that
the access has not been used for more than 20 years.

Under Policy DM16, and through the Landscape Character Assessment 2020
prepared in support of the evidence of the emerging Local Plan, the application site
is not specifically mentioned. However, the document identifies the strongly rural
character of the area and sparsely settled character. Particular sensitivities are
identified around the landscape of Waldershare Park and ‘the strong sense of
tranquility and experience of dark night skies”.

The proposed fencing is an urban structure within the countryside, and appears to
have been erected under permitted development rights. Notwithstanding, the harm
identified to the significance of the Historic Park & Garden by the Gardens Trust is
assessed as being less than substantial, for the above reasons. Although a further
matter to weigh in the balance, it is considered that this level of harm could be
addressed through the imposition of conditions as set out later in this Report. These
would require the removal of the fencing in due course, the planting of native
species and additional landscaping, and the provision of the buffer zone. These
conditions would satisfy the objection/concerns of the Garden’s Trust. It is
considered that the proposal would meet the requirements of Policy DM19 and the
NPPF.

Impact upon the Ancient Woodland

The application site does not include the Ancient Woodland to the south of the site.
Notwithstanding, and following current guidance, a 15m buffer zone has been
designed into the layout of the site. This would be fenced to prevent domestic
activity taking place on it. Buffer Zones are often required as they can enable
natural regeneration and provide habitats capable of supporting other features of
the Ancient Woodland -notably breeding woodland birds and invertebrates. If left in
its natural state there is more chance of the land once again being more of an
integral part of the Ancient Woodland.

The borehole is located within this buffer zone, but other than maintenance and
husbandry of the land, conditions can be imposed for the erection of a suitable
boundary enclosure, the prevention of the domestic/recreational use of the land, and
the provision of some biodiversity enhancements. It is considered that the proposal
would meet the requirements of the NPPF.



2.26

2.27

2.28

2.29

2.30

2.31

2.32

Other Material Considerations

Need and Supply of Sites:

It is necessary to clearly distinguish between, and deal separately with, the need for
gypsy sites generally within the area and the needs of the intended occupiers of the
site as individuals or as a family or group.

In terms of the general need for gypsy sites within the wider area, the LPA can
demonstrate a 5 year supply of gypsy sites. Notwithstanding, meeting the (5-year)
accommodation needs of gypsies should not be considered to be a ‘ceiling’ or veto
to allowing other sites that are considered acceptable on their planning merits.
However, purely on this issue, there is not a current lack of gypsy sites within the
district.

With regard to the proposed occupiers, there is a need supported by evidence that
has been submitted for a settled base for the two families proposed to occupy the
land.

Personal Circumstances:

Submitted with the application are details of the personal circumstances of the
applicant and the two families. In summary, circumstances such as health,
education and local connections to Eastry and Dover apply.

Alternative Sites:

There is a surplus of alternative sites and pitches within the district, which carries a
significant weight in the determination of the application. The LPA has a
development strategy in emerging policy to accommodate the needs of the gypsy
and traveller communities, which has already produced an over-supply of sites and
is likely to lead to a further increase in provision. However, details have been
submitted by the applicant of a number of times when he and his family have not
been able to have a settled base.

Previously Developed Land:

Paragraph 26 of the PPTS explains that LPAs should attach weight to certain
matters — such as the effective use of previously developed untidy or derelict land.
The original site was not previously developed — it formed part of and contributed
towards the open character of the area. Prior to the occupation of the site by the
applicant and two of the eight caravans along with associated works, the land was
described in 2020 as unkempt grassland with nettles. The planning permission for
the stables to accommodate 3 horses, associated development and use of the land
would have in part removed the undeveloped condition of the land. This is a fall
back position.

Other matters set out in Paragraph 26 of the PPTS can be assessed as follows - the
site is well planned and can be improved through soft landscaping, the grassed play
area could help promote a healthy lifestyle for children, the site is enclosed but the
intention is to encourage the planting of the boundaries of the site which would
enable the erected fencing to be replaced with fencing of a more suitable nature.

Temporary Planning Permission:
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Weighing the proposal in the planning balance, and taking into consideration that
the Council does not have a lack of 5 year supply of gypsy pitches and there
appears to be no pending change in personal circumstances for the applicant, a
temporary planning permission is not considered appropriate.

Planning Conditions:

It is important to determine whether the harm caused by the development could be
mitigated by a landscaping scheme or the imposition of planning conditions.

It is considered that further landscaping could help mitigate visual harm and there
are other conditions that would help mitigate the impact and/or provide
enhancements. Conditions assessed to be necessary and appropriate in this case
are set out at the end of the report.

Thanet Coast/Sandwich Bay SPA/Environmental Impact:

The decision of the CJEU in People Over Wind and Sweetman v Coillte Teoranta
was issued in April 2018 and is required to be taken into account. The application
site falls within an area of the District where development has the potential to have a
significant effect on the Thanet Coast/Sandwich Bay Special Protection Area (SPA)
— within the District. In this instance, The Conservation of Habitats and Species
Regulations 2017 SI 2017/1012 and article 6(3) of Directive 92/43/EEC apply.

Applying a pre-cautionary approach and with the best scientific knowledge in the
field, it is not currently possible to discount the potential for all new housing
development within the district to have an adverse effect on the integrity of the
protected SPA and Ramsar sites. Following consultation with Natural England, the
identified pathway for such an adverse effect is an increase in recreational activity
which causes disturbance, pre-dominantly by dog-walking, to the species which led
to the designation of the sites and the integrity of the sites themselves.

The Thanet Coast and Sandwich Bay SPA and Ramsar Mitigation Strategy was
agreed with Natural England in 2012 and is still considered to be effective in
preventing or reducing the harmful effects of housing development on the SPA and
Ramsar sites. For proposed housing developments in excess of 14 dwellings the
agreement with Natural England is that those applications are required to contribute
to the Strategy in accordance with a published schedule to mitigate against harmful
effects. This mitigation comprises several elements, including monitoring and
wardening.

The mitigation measures will ensure that the harmful effects on the designated site,
caused by recreational activities from existing and new residents, from all housing
developments in the district, will be effectively managed. Having regard to the
proposed mitigation measures and the level of contribution currently acquired from
these larger developments, it is considered that the application proposal would not
have an adverse effect on the integrity of the SPA and Ramsar sites.

Other Matters:

The site falls within a Groundwater Protection Zone (Zone 3). Policy DM17 seeks to
prevent or restrict development in Zones 1 and 2. Subject to necessary conditions,
as suggested through the responses from statutory consultees, the degree of impact
or harm could be suitably addressed or controlled.
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The request by Kent County Council for financial contributions towards community
services can only apply for sites that exceed 0.5 hectares or for development that
exceeds 10 new housing units. The proposal is for 8 new dwellings, which is under
the threshold. The area of the site that could be occupied by the caravans is
proposed to be conditioned to be as shown on the submitted layout drawing —
meaning that the occupation of the site by the caravans will be restricted to a certain
area of the site which will be under 0.5 hectares. On the other areas of the site a
significant amount of open space and a buffer zone are proposed. On this basis, a
contribution is not considered to be required.

Planning Balance and Conclusion

The determination of this application should be made in the planning balance. Itis
considered that the site is not in a sustainable location; it would rely on the use of
the private car and it is not easily accessible to local services and facilities by foot
cycle or public transport. The location of the site is in conflict with the objectives
behind the Development Plan policies, the NPPF and the PPTS. In addition, the
erection of the fence and the location of the gypsy pitches along with the residential
and domestic nature and occupation of the site would run contrary to policies DM15
and DM16 and causes a degree of harm.

This conflict with the Development Plan is tempered by a number of factors. The
site is on a bus route, and it is not in a ‘remote’ location. It is within a short journey
to Whitfield, Eythorne and Eastry and other locations where there are schools,
surgeries and local services. Furthermore, the location is not on a rural lane — it is
on the (old) Sandwich Road, which is wide enough and aligned to accommodate
travel movements. In addition, the recent planning permission means that there
would be a degree of travel movements by private vehicle and horse box associated
with the approved stable building and use of land.

The harm to the countryside and less than substantial harm to the Historic Park &
Garden could be tempered through planning conditions, as set out. Some
biodiversity enhancements could also take place.

Whilst there is currently a 5 year supply of gypsy pitches, it does not preclude
allowing other sites if they do not cause adverse harm. In this case, the adverse
harm would need to be demonstrated and evidenced to be a reason why planning
permission should be withheld - under paragraph 11d of the NPPF.

The need for such a site and the personal circumstances that have been provided
and submitted in support of the proposal carry significant weight.

In bringing all key considerations together within the planning balance, it is
considered that the proposal is on balance acceptable, subject to the planning
conditions set out below.

Recommendation

PERMISSION BE GRANTED, subject to conditions addressing the following:
i) Approval of Drawings submitted

i)  The site shall not be occupied by any persons other than gypsies



i)  The static caravans hereby permitted shall be stationed on the land in
the location shown on the approved Drawing

iv)  The form, size and appearance and use of materials of the dayroom
and static caravans hereby permitted shall be as shown on the
Approved Drawing and submission

v)  No more than 8 static caravans and no more than 8 touring caravans.
Only the static caravans hereby approved on the site shall be
occupied residentially

vi)  Approval of details for foul and surface water drainage

vii) Measures to identify and protect archaeology during excavation

viii) Set back of gate on the access and provision of visibility splays

ix)  Additional landscaping/tree planting

X)  The area of undeveloped land shown as grass on the approved
Drawing shall be retained as a grassed amenity space for the site.

xi)  No additional boundary enclosures or hardstanding areas to be
provided

xii)  Provision and retention of buffer zone as shown on Approved Drawing
xiii) Provision of precautionary measures to protect ecology

xiv) Biodiversity enhancements

xv) Removal of front boundary fence when planting established

xvi) No commercial activity or storage of materials or other commercial
equipment shall take place or be stored on the site

xvii) No external lighting other than motion activated lighting on the
buildings or caravans

Powers be delegated to the Head of Planning and Development to settle any
necessary wording in line with the recommendations and as resolved by the
Planning Committee.

Case Officer:

Vic Hester



From: -@kent.gov.uk

Sent: 24 April 2024 11:46
To:
Subject: RE: 23/01441 - Eastling Down Farm, Sandwich Road, Waldershare

No problem, by the sound of the description it’ll probably come to me so | will try my best to get it back to you asap
on my return. I'll Iet- know though, but his workload at the moment may mean he doesn’t have capacity to take
on some of mine.

_Have a lovely time if | don’t speak to you before.

Kind regards,

|Transport & Development Planner | Dover, Thanet and Canterbury | Transport &

Development Planning | Highways, Transportation & Waste | Kent County Council | Ashford
Highway Depot, Henwood Industrial Estate, Javelin Way, Ashford, TN24 8AD | 03000 41 81 81
|www_kent.gov.uk/highways

twitker

@KentHighways

Please consider the environment before printing this email

From:_@DOVER.GOV.UK>

Sent: Wednesday, April 24,2024 11:41 AM

To: @kent.gov.uk>

Subject: Re: 23/01441 - Eastling Down Farm, Sandwich Road, Waldershare

Ah thank you for looking so quickly!
i'llget an urgent re-consultation issued.
| hope you have a wonderful week off, i'm sure the break is much needed!

A good here, I

Thank you again,

From:-@kent.gov.uk- kent.gov.uk>

Sent: 24 April 2024 11:34
To: @DOVER.GOV.UK>
Subject: RE: 23/01441 - Eastling Down Farm, Sandwich Road, Waldershare

o
All good here thanks I oo yo. < wlaso

Just had a quick look on our system and it doesn’t look like this was ever received by us. Last we had in the area was
in 2021 and the reference isn’t recognised. Sorry!




Let me know if there’s anything else | can do to help.

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
|www.kent.ov.uk/highways
P
FOLLOW US

@KentHighways

Please consider the environment before printing this email

ror: I 00 <5 GOV >

Sent: Wednesday, April 24, 2024 11:31 AM

To: @kent.gov.uk>
Subject: 23/01441 - Eastling Down Farm, Sandwich Road, Waldershare

Hi [l

I hope you're well.

I'm just writing a case for committee and note that there are no replies from Kent Highways on the file.
| wondered if it had been missed during some of the technical issues we experienced earlier this year.

The application is at the above address for the following:
"Outline application for the erection of four dwellings with associated parking and landscaping (all matters
reserved apart from access)"

This was originally allocated to another officer, so there is also a chance it may have been lost along the way.
Would you be able to check for me please?

Thank you!

“ Planning Officer
DOVER

DISTRICT Development Management
COUNCIL Dover District Council

_ Council Offices, White Cliffs Business Park, Whitfield, Dover CT16 3PJ
Phone: I

Email: (@dover.gov.uk
Web: http://dover.gov.uk

b% Please consider the Environment before printing this email



Dover District Council is a data controller under GDPR, your attention is drawn to our Corporate
Privacy Notice at https://www.dover.gov.uk/privacy. This explains how we will use and share
your personal information and protect your privacy and rights.

This e-mail, including any attachments, is intended for the above addressee(s) only and may contain marked material up to RESTRICTED and should be
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From: _@rebusplanning.co.uk>

Sent: 24 April 2024 18:01

To: I

Subject: FW: DOV/23/01441 - land at Eastling Down Farm, Sandwich Road, Waldershare
Attachments: Extract - National Bus Strategy - Kent.pdf; 21_00731-

OFFICER_REPORT-2352671.docx

HeIIo-

Do you have an update please?

Your ‘treatment’ of our application has been most appreciated, but | know that matters may be outside of your
control.

My clients really do deserve to understand how the LPA is to consider this application and so we welcome an urgent
update.

| would also welcome a conversation with you, should you wish to call — please do on the number below.
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
Sent: Tuesday, April 23,2024 11:05 AM

To: I 0 <7 o\ IR @ 00 Ve GOV.UK>

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

7 n

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
No.10406180 at: : Office 1 Upstairs, Yew Tree Farm, Stone Street, Stanford, Kent TN25 6DH



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

Kent Bus Service Improvement Plan 67



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



1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

2.1

2.2

23

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





